
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 12 July 2021 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Executive Agenda - 20 July 2021 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Executive will be held at 6.00 pm on Tuesday, 
20 July 2021 at the The Ballroom, The George Hotel,  Penrith CA11 7SU. 
 
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting you will need to book in 
advance. This is necessary due to Covid restrictions on the number who can attend. 
Please contact Democratic Services; the details are below* 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes   
 

RECOMMENDATION that the public minutes E/01/06/21 to E/10/06/21 Executive 
held on 15 June 2021 be confirmed and approved by the Chairman as a correct 
record of those proceedings (copies previously circulated). 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 
 

4   Questions and Representations from the Public   
 

To receive questions and representations from the public under Rules 3 and 4 of the 
Executive Procedure Rules of the Constitution 
 

5   Questions from Members   
 

To receive questions and representations from Members under Rule 5 of the 
Executive Procedure Rules of the Constitution 
 

6   Corporate Strategic Priorities 2021/22  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

To consider the Interim Director of Resources report F21/21 seeking approval for the 
Strategic Priorities for the year 2021-2022. 
 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

7   Eden Business Support Fund  - 6 Year Review  (Pages 13 - 22) 
 

To consider report no.PP16/21 from the Assistant Director Development. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 

1. The Eden Business Support Fund is continued and reviewed in three years’ time. 

2. The requested amendment to the fund set out in Appendix A under ‘Potential 
amendments to the criteria’ is agreed and a new formal agreement is drawn up 
between the Council and Enterprise Answers to reflect this change and the other 
amendments, set out in Appendix A over the last 6 years.  

 

8   Unit 1, Gillan Way, Penrith - Relaxation of Covenants  (Pages 23 - 34) 
 

To consider report G24/21 of the Assistant Director Legal & Democratic Services. 
 

RECOMMENDED that the restrictive covenant is relaxed to permit the use of the premises 
as an Ophthalmic Clinic (formerly Use Class D1, now Use Class E(e)). 

 

9   Covid Update Report  (Pages 35 - 44) 
 

To consider report no.F27/21 from the Interim Director of Resources. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the progress and achievements be noted. 
 

10   Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider whether, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, members of the public (including the press) should be excluded from the 
meeting during discussion of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 to Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

11   Delivery of Waste and Recycling Collection Services   
 

To consider report no.CE7/21 from the Deputy Chief Executive (marked to follow). 
 
[Note: this report will be sent ‘to follow’ because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s recommendations will not be available until after the meeting of that 
Committee which is due to be held on Thursday 15 July 2021] 
 

12   Any Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent   
 

13   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

Tuesday 14 September 2021 at 6.00 pm.   
 

 
 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chairman – Councillor V Taylor (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor M Robinson (Independent Alliance Group) 
 
Councillors 

J Derbyshire, Liberal Democrat Group 
K Greenwood, Independent Alliance Group 
M Rudhall, Liberal Democrat Group 
 

L Sharp, Labour Group 
M Tonkin, Independent Alliance Group 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: F21/21 

Eden District Council 

Executive 
 

Corporate Strategic Priorities 2021/22 

Portfolio: Leader 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To seek approval for the strategic priorities for the year 2021-2022 

. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the revised strategic priorities are approved, and form the 
basis of the quarterly Performance Management reports. 

3 Introduction 

3.1 In November 2019 the Executive approved the Council Plan (now known as the 
Corporate Plan 2019-2023).  The vision and strategic priorities were adopted and are 
as follows:- 

3.2 Vision 

Our vision for Eden is of a place where people act together to meet the needs of all 
and to ensure the well-being of future generations. 

3.3 Strategic Priorities 

Sustainable 

Make our Council financially viable, customer focused and zero carbon. Co-produce 
economic opportunities and strategies which will protect Eden’s working cultural 
landscapes and biodiversity, aiming to store more carbon than is produced in the 
District. 

Healthy, Safe and Secure 

Improve housing, both new build and existing, working towards self-sufficiency in 
energy; and co-produce healthy, connected, prosperous communities, for all, young 
and old, urban and rural. 

Connected 

Improve digital connectivity, transport and access to attract and support businesses, 
employees and families, connecting Eden with the global economy and knowledge 
industries. People connected in communities and with access to education, work, 
healthcare and leisure and combat isolation. 

Creative 

Encourage innovation in tourism, food and green industries and support businesses to 
respond to national and global changes. Develop arts and cultural activities to add to 
town centre vibrancy; support communities; and improve health and wellbeing 

Page  5

Agenda Item 6



 

 

3.4 The Council has successfully managed an extraordinary increase in its workload and 
responsibilities over the course of the pandemic, as recorded in Report No.F27/21. A 
year ago we were talking about recovery and building back better; now we can move 
forward at pace helping our communities and economies with recovery and building 
for a new future. 

3.5 Of course we cannot deliver all of these priorities in isolation and in a lot of cases we 
are working with external partners, sometimes with direct funding. 

3.6 At the time of writing the outcome of Local Government Re-organisation is not known. 
However we feel this presents an opportunity to ensure that Eden, as part of any new 
authority, will have a more prosperous, efficient, and sustainable future; level up 
investment and growth opportunities for Eden; improve our economy, health 
outcomes, skills, address population decline and housing affordability; and deliver on 
our policy commitments to climate and ecological emergencies. 

4 Report Details  

4.1 The Council’s performance management framework will be used to monitor progress 
of the Plan. Each quarter we will report on the progress measured against key 
milestones.  

 

4.2  Appendix A shows this year’s strategic priorities.  Each priority will have a set of 
milestones, which we will use to measure the performance against. The milestones 
will be reported upon as part of the Quarter 1 Performance report. 

 
 

Sustainable 

o Local Government Re-organisation 

o Organisational Transformation 

o Local Plan/Planning 

o Zero Carbon Strategy 

o Biodiversity 

o Sustainable waste service 

o Eden Economic Strategy  

o Place making  

 

 Healthy, Safe and Secure 

o New Homes    

o Low Carbon Housing Retrofit Programme   

o Young People & Families  

o Public Realm   

o Housing Strategy  

o Poverty  

Page  6



 

  

Connected 

o Community Devolution of Assets  

o Digital Eden 

o Cycling  

o Equality & Diversity  

 

 Creative 

o Town Centres  

o Low Carbon/Greening Eden Businesses  

o London Road 

o Arts & Culture  

5 Policy Framework 

5.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, Safe and Secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

5.2 This report meets all of the above priorities. 

6 Consultation 

6.1 Senior managers, and members of the Executive were consulted in drafting the 
revised strategic priorities for 2021-2022. 

7 Implications 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2015-19 as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015. 

7.1.2 Financial commitment to the Corporate Plan priorities were identified in Appendix A in 
the MTFP (ref F13/20).  Where any additional financial support is required to deliver 
initiatives these will be identified in the quarterly budget review and external funding 
bids will be made where the need arises. 

7.2 Legal 

7.2.1 The provision of functions set out in this report shall be provided in accordance with 
relevant legal requirements including those that impact on equality and diversity and 
taking account of the legal duties that the Council has towards staff. 

7.3 Human Resources 

7.3.1 There are no direct human resource implications arising from this report. 

Page  7



7.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity The Council is committed to ensuring it meets the 
Public Sector Equality Duty in order to provide 
equality of opportunity through access to services for 
all and delivering services which meet the needs of 
the Council’s customers. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The Corporate Plan promotes the well-being of future 
generations, and the post pandemic recovery of our 
communities. There will be positive implications from 
the low carbon initiatives outlined in the plan and 
benefits from on-going economic opportunities.  

Crime and Disorder Healthy, connected, prosperous communities will 
reduce the scope for crime and disorder. Good 
design using the principles of Secure by Design will 
also to reduce crime and disorder.    

Children and 
Safeguarding 

The Council will work with other agencies to promote 
the well-being and safety of children and vulnerable 
adults. 

8. Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That the Council does 
not have a clear vision, 
and the corporate plan 
is not reviewed and 
updated  to deal with 
emerging issues  

Short term and reactive 
decision making which is 
not in the best interest of 
the Council over the 
longer term.  

Adoption of the revised 
Corporate Strategic   
priorities 2021/22 

9 Other Options Considered 

9.1 The only other option is not to report on progress against targets set. This is not 
recommended. 

10 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

10.1 To advise Members of progress against outcomes. 

Background Papers:  

 

Appendices: Appendix A - Corporate Strategic Priorities 2021 to 2022 

  

  

Contact Officer: Amanda Yellowley, Assistant Director - Customers & 
Performance 

Page  8



 

Final 8/7/2021 

Corporate Strategic Priorities 2021 to 
2022 
 

 

Sustainable  

Local Government Re-organisation – plan and negotiate where possible for   
improved services, resident engagement, and employment. Work with central and 
local government, and other agencies, to deliver all required process and changes 
efficiently and in good order. 

     
Organisational Transformation - move to one operational site; embed a Customer 
Experience Culture across the organisation; create a dynamic agile organisation, 
focussing on customers, service delivery, digital technology, accommodation, 
workforce skills and income generation. 

 
Local Plan/Planning – undertake (i) a partial review of the Local Plan, to strengthen 
policies on two key areas: climate change and design and (ii) a settlement study. 

 

Zero Carbon Strategy - deliver the Zero Carbon Eden District Council Strategy & 

Action Plan 2020-2023, making progress on reducing the Council’s carbon footprint 

to zero by 2030, by improving energy use and biodiversity in EDC estate, promoting 

community projects in the district, e.g. community energy schemes.  

 
Biodiversity – manage our own land sustainably, collaborate with external bodies 
develop and deliver integrated protection and enhancement of natural habitats within 
Eden ecosystems.  
 
Sustainable waste service - develop a new waste and recycling service which  is 

compliant with the governments waste and resource strategy, and aims to reduce 

the service’s carbon footprint and remove plastic waste wherever possible. 

 
Eden Economic Strategy – deliver a work plan and strategy to support growth, 
business development, and higher wages in a post Covid, 21st Century Rural 
economy  
  
 
Place making – sell Mansion House & develop Town Hall site to enhance the public 
realm through provision of Hotel, leisure, economic and cultural facilities.  
 
 
 

Page  9



 

Final 8/7/2021 

 

 

 

Healthy, Safe & Secure  

New Homes - deliver a pilot new build sustainable affordable housing scheme, 

which is both environmentally sound and capable of being replicated within a 

reasonable cost envelope; use the learning gained to work in partnership with 

Homes England and other agencies to deliver similar schemes to meet local needs.  

Low Carbon Housing Retrofit Programme  deliver the existing programme , 

secure new funding where possible, and assist other authorities with Green Homes 

LAD schemes, ensuring that resources are available to make maximum use of 

government grants to tackle the triple challenges of low carbon, health and wellbeing 

and fuel poverty in the housing sector.  

Young People & Families – to be active members of the Eden Children and 

Families Locality working group  with the aim to retain and attract a working age 

population to overcome the increasing demographic imbalance, improve health & 

wellbeing, and to provide our young people with education, training, employment 

opportunities and good affordable housing.   

Public Realm - support communities to improve their local open spaces, allotments, 

and play areas, for active leisure, safe outdoor play, and improved biodiversity.  

Housing Strategy – we will develop an action plan to deliver our new housing 

strategy setting out our vision for affordable decent homes for our local people, and 

to help us retain our young people and families. 

Poverty – we will work across the Council to ensure that all residents struggling due 

poverty and inequality to have access to advice and assistance. Through this work 

the long term aim is to reduce levels of poverty and financial inequality across the 

district. 

 
Connected 

 
Community Devolution of Assets – work with CALC, parishes and others to 
progress the mutually agreed transfer of assets to parish and town councils in a 
timely and cost-effective manner.  

 
Digital Eden - support the work of partners, agencies and the Department of 
Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) to deliver broadband and improved digital signal 
to all parts of Eden district. 
 
Cycling - to promote cycling in the District through improving safe storage facilities 
in towns; be an active member of the County cycling strategy, and to support the 
work of partners in developing better cycle routes.  

Page  10



 

Final 8/7/2021 

 

Equality & Diversity - to carry out a review of our current internal practices, and to 
develop new policy and staff training with outside consultants. 
 
 
 

Creative  
 
Town Centres - work with partners, including Borderlands, prepare plans for funding 

bids to reinvent our town centres for the future, to increase investment, promote their 

uniqueness and explore creative ways to bring empty units and historic buildings 

back into use. 

Low Carbon/Greening Eden Businesses - improve the financial and environmental 
sustainability of local businesses by adopting an EDC First procurement policy, and 
helping local businesses reduce their carbon foot print. 
 
London Road – creation of zero carbon commercial/industrial units. 
 
Arts & Culture – develop and deliver an Arts & Culture Programme to enhance the 

creative and cultural lives of all through greater community participation in Arts and 

Culture activity throughout the District - sustaining healthy communities and 

establishing Eden as a great place for young people to live, creative enterprises to 

thrive, and visitors to enjoy. 

. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page  11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No:  PP16/21 

Eden District Council 

Executive  

20 July 2021 

Eden Business Support Fund – 6 year review 

Portfolio: Economies and Enterprise  

Report from: Assistant Director Development 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To review the performance of the Eden Business Support Fund over the last 
three years and consider whether any changes should be made to the fund. A 
previous review was undertaken three years ago.  In addition, the report 
recommends continuation of the Fund for a further three years. 

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that: 

1. The Eden Business Support Fund is continued and reviewed in three 
years’ time. 

2. The requested amendment to the fund set out in Appendix A under 
‘Potential amendments to the criteria’ is agreed and a new formal 
agreement is drawn up between the Council and Enterprise Answers to 
reflect this change and the other amendments, set out in Appendix A 
over the last 6 years.  

3 Background to Eden Business Support Fund  

3.1 In December 2014, the Council agreed to setting up the Eden Business 
Support Fund (EBSF). The Fund is set at £500,000 and is designed to 
support local businesses that are looking to expand and develop but may 
have struggled to get the backing from mainstream lenders for a variety of 
reasons, so have had their growth and job creation plans stifled.  

3.2 The EBSF is a joint project between Eden District Council and Enterprise 
Answers who are a not for profit Community Development Finance Institution 
(CDFI). Each partner has committed to putting £250,000 into the Fund. 

3.3 Since Council agreed to the Fund being set up a Formal Agreement was 
drafted and signed by both parties and the Fund has become operational. As 
part of the Formal Agreement, there is a requirement contained within the 
document that requires quarterly monitoring reports and an Annual Statement 
to be produced by Enterprise Answers and issued to Eden District Council. 
These are taken to Informal meetings with the Economies and Enterprise 
Portfolio Holder where progress against the Fund’s performance is monitored 
and any areas of concern are raised.  

Page  13

Agenda Item 7



3.4  The Council report envisaged that the initiative should run initially for six years 
with a full review of the scheme undertaken after three years. A review was 
undertaken after three years of operation. This report presents a further 
review of the fund after six years, undertaken internally by the Economic 
Development Team.   

3.5  This review explores evidence to help the Council consider whether the 
authority should continue with the scheme, and if so whether it should be in its 
current format or undertake any changes, for example increase or decrease 
the level of funding invested in this scheme.  

3.6 Details of the performance of the scheme over the course of the six years is 
set out in Appendix A. The overall performance of the Fund in meeting the 
expectations of Eden District Council and Enterprise Answers gives 
confidence that the scheme should be pursued for a further three years. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority to make the Council more 
financially viable and the Connected and Creative corporate priorities to 
support businesses.  

5 Consultation 

5.1 The Economies and Enterprise Portfolio Holder receives a quarterly 
monitoring report and annual reports at the informal Portfolio Holder meetings.  

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2 The cost of the contribution to the Eden Business Support Fund of £250,000 
was agreed by Council in December 2014. The Council also receives an 
income from the EBSF as a result of the interest rate charged on the loans, 
however there is also the potential from the loan to suffer from bad debts, 
however, this is mitigated where possible through due diligence checks 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no additional human resource implications arising from this report. 

Page  14



6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no equality and diversity implications 
arising from the report. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The Eden Business Support Fund has a positive 
economic benefit by creating and safeguarding 
jobs in Eden and providing an alternative finance 
option for businesses.  

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from this report. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no children and safeguarding 
implications arising from this report. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

The main risk 
associated with the 
Fund are those around 
bad debt being 
incurred. 

Bad debt is incurred 
and there is the 
potential loss of public 
funds. 

Due diligence checks 
that are undertaken 
prior to a loan being 
taken out are seen as 
a key way of mitigating 
that risk where 
possible.  In addition, 
Enterprise Answers 
have significant 
commercial banking 
experience and have 
an enviable record of 
low levels of bad debt. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 The option to discontinue the scheme was rejected because of the positive 
economic impact of the scheme for businesses and for the Council.  

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The scheme is delivering on its aims, the amount of funding out on loan 
shows a need for the scheme and the Council also benefits from the 
investment.  

Background Papers: 

Council Report 4 December 2014, Eden Business Loan Fund 

Executive Report 3 July 2018, Eden Business Support Fund – 3 Year Review 

Executive Report 3 September 2019, Eden Business Support Fund – Amendment to 
Criteria  

 

Page  15



Appendices: Performance data from Eden Business Support Fund   

Contact Officer: Emily Bond, Economic Development Manager   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page  16



Appendix A – Performance review of the EBSF from 2015 - 2021 

Summary data 

The performance data below sets out the information for first six years of the fund so 
far, focussing specifically in more detail on the last three years, with data taken from 
the annual statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table A: Summary Information 

Measure 
Total  

2015-2018 2018/19 

 

2019/20 2020/21 

Total  

2018-2021 

Total enquiries  19 2 28 21 51 

Loans approved 9 2 3 2 7 

Applications withdrawn 5 0 2 0 2 

Applications declined 5 0 2 0 2 

Total value of loans 
approved 

£397,000 £110,000 £186,500 £310,000 
£606,500 

Total number of loans 
performing satisfactorily 

8 6 6 5 
5 

Total number of loans in 
default/arrears 

1 1 0 1 
1 

Total number of loans 
repaid  

1 2 4 2 
8 

Total number of new 
jobs created 

13 4 11 0 
15 

Total number of jobs 
safeguarded 

23.5* 4 27 28 
59 

Total number of 
employees upskilled 

18* 4 8 0 
12 

      

* These figures include 9 employees who have been upskilled and jobs 
safeguarded in a business that has since gone into administration.  

 

 

Page  17



Enquiries 

The number of enquiries over the last three years of the scheme has shown an 
increase in comparison to the first 3 years. This likely represents wider knowledge of 
availability of the scheme and reduction in the availability of other funding streams.  

The availability of the scheme is marketed by Enterprise Answers and by the Council 
through traditional and online marketing.  

 

Loan repayments  

The table below outlines the loans repaid and outstanding after 6 years of the 
scheme.  

Table B: Loans outstanding at 31 March 2021 

Loan  Start 
date 

Value Interest 
rate 

Term 
(months) 

Remaining value 

1 24/12/15 £100,000 12.0% 64         £0.00 

2 11/02/16 £40,000 10.0% 12         £0.00 

3 27/01/16 £20,000 12.0% 60         £0.00 

4 15/06/15 £20,000 12.0% 60         £0.00 

5 16/03/17 £90,000 11.0% 60    £22,140.48 

6 29/09/17 £57,000 10.5% 60         £0.00 

7 08/03/18 £10,000 12.0% 66 6 £10,£          £0.00 

8 18/04/18 £35,000 9.95% 6060   60 £        £0.00 

9 27/07/18 £50,000 12.0% 333 3 £        £0.00 

10 03/09/18 £60,000 12.0% 36 ££51    £15,248.65 

11 06/02/20 £60,000 10.5% 60 £56,109.35 

12 17/02/20 £100,000 12.0% 48 £0.00 

13 03/03/20 £26,500 12.0% 60 £22,140.48 

14 23/04/20 £160,000 12.00% 48 £136,409.60 

15 20/05/20 £150,000 12.00% 12 £150,000.00 

 

 

Page  18



In the first three years of the scheme, one debtor went into liquidation and the loan 
was fully recovered. The Coronavirus pandemic has dominated the last year, loans 
drawn down prior to the pandemic maintained their repayment schedule or benefitted 
from interest only payments where there was a strain on their cash flow. Only one 
loan has experienced difficulty and is currently two months in arrears but Enterprise 
Answers are confident this will be corrected in the short term. 

When investing the Council’s money in this fund, it was outlined that the main risk 
associated with the Fund was bad debt being incurred. Due diligence checks that are 
undertaken prior to a loan being taken out are seen as a key way of mitigating that 
risk where possible. Nevertheless, despite any mitigation actions, the risk still exists 
and must be accepted as a potential consequence. The experience with the previous 
debtor proved that Enterprise Answers dealt with the debt swiftly following 
notification of liquidation and had already undertaken the necessary work prior to 
agreeing the loan to ensure that full recovery was possible.  Enterprise Answers 
continue to have an enviable record of low levels of bad debt. 
 

4.4 Return on Investment (ROI) 

 

Table C: Interest Payments and ROI   

Period Loan 
interest 

EDC 50% 
share 

Credit 
interest 
on EDC 
funds 

EDC Total Return on 
Investment  

2015/16 £4,345.89 £2,172.95 £433.18 £2,606.13 1.04% 

2016/17 £11,363.58 £5,681.80 £147.61 £5,829.40 2.33% 

2017/18 £19,669.18 £9,834.59 £0.00* £9,834.59 3.93% 

2018/19 £24,906.00 £12,453.00 £0.00* £12,453.00 4.98% 

2019/20 £20,111.32 £10,055.66 £0.00* £10,055.66 4.02% 

2020/21 £42,523.92 £21,261.96 £0.00* £21,261.96 8.50% 

Total  
£122,919.89 

 
 

 

 

£580.79 £62,040.74 Average 
4.14% / year 

* Enterprise Answers no longer receives interest in this account.  

As expected, the scheme did take some time to establish and the return on 
investment has generally increased year on year as more loans have been taken 
out, averaging out at 4.14% ROI per year on the original £250,000 investment over 
the 6 years to date.   

 

Page  19



Social return and benefit to the economy of Eden 

The criteria for the loans requires that the businesses create new employment or 
safeguard existing employment if at risk, and have a clear remit and policy to upskill, 
train and develop employees.  

Over the last three years, the fund has helped to create 15 new jobs. Safeguarding 
employment at risk is just as important an outcome for the fund. The scheme has 
helped to safeguard 59 jobs during this time period.  

Training and upskilling employees is important for both the development of the 
company and those individuals for career progression. Over the last three years, 
twelve employees have been trained and upskilled as a requirement of the funding.  

As a requirement of all of these businesses is that they are experiencing difficulty in 
obtaining finance from conventional sources, the Eden Business Support Fund has 
delivered jobs, growth and skills which may not have happened without the fund. 

 

EBSF loan criteria 

Loan Criteria set out in formal agreement 

Within the Formal Agreement, the criteria for a loan has been set out along with what 
has been agreed as being a qualifying business for the support:  

 to provide loans of between £10,000 and £100,000 for no more than eight 

years to Qualifying Businesses; and 

Qualifying Businesses are classed as below: 

 The business is based or operating from within the District of Eden, 

 The business  is experiencing difficulty in obtaining finance from 

conventional sources, 

 The business can demonstrate future growth potential over a three year 

period, 

 The business can create new employment or safeguard existing 

employment if at risk, 

 The business must have a clear remit and policy to upskill, train and 

develop employees with a view to enhancing the business which reflects in 

improved employee remuneration, and 

 The business must operate in key sectors such as tourism, agriculture, 

manufacturing, engineering, digital technology or renewable energy. 

 

 

 

 

Page  20



In considering which businesses and activities the EBSF may support, it is also 
useful to clarify what the EBSF will not support:  

The fund must not be used: 

 to provide loans that will be used to clear existing debt and/or existing 

loans; 

 to award loans to any party that is managed, controlled, influenced or is 

owned by or has any other material links to Enterprise Answers or to any 

employee of Enterprise Answers; 

 to award loans to businesses that are in difficulty as defined within the EC 

guidelines on rescue and restructuring; 

 to support management buy outs or other similar arrangements. 

Existing amendments to the formal agreement  

Short term bridging loan  

As part of the 3 year review in July 2018, the addition of a short term bridging loan 

was agreed by the Executive to be included as part of the EBSF offer to add 

flexibility to the scheme. The short term bridging loan is available to any Eden 

business which has been successful in securing grant funding or is in the process of 

securing term lending from an alternative or mainstream provider. This loan is 

designed to assist applicants with meeting the upfront expenditure which must be 

incurred before the grant is paid out to reimburse the cost, as agreed within the grant 

offer letter or to provide the business with the necessary working capital until the 

alternative/mainstream finance becomes available. 

The bridging loan allowed a business to borrow more than the maximum of £100,000 

for a loan term of up to 6 months.  

Extension of loan size and duration 

In September 2019 the Executive agreed to amend the criteria to extend the loan 

period up to 15 years and extend the loan amount up to £200,000. As a result of this 

change the fund is now more flexible to larger business enquiries and two loans over 

£100,000 have been drawn down.  

Review of EBSF   

Continuation of the scheme  

In the current business climate where banks are increasingly risk adverse, the 
scheme offers a financial option to businesses in Eden, which may be the only option 
available to them to create and safeguard jobs in Eden. The job numbers show a 
positive effect on Eden’s economy and the ROI for the Council is averaging 4.14% 
with an 8.5% return over the last year which is very good in the current climate. One 
loan is currently behind on payments but given that COVID-19 has caused very 
challenging business conditions over the last year the situation could have been 
much worse.   

 

Page  21



It is therefore recommended that the scheme is continued and reviewed in a further 
three years’ time.  

 

Increase or decrease of funding in the scheme  

 The Council could choose to increase or decrease the level of funding in the 
scheme. At no point during the scheme have loans had to be turned down due to 
lack of availability of funds in the pot. At the current time over 80% of the fund is out 
on loan so there is a risk that this could become the case if a large loan enquiry was 
to come in. 

 It is recommended that should this situation occur, Enterprise Answers notify the 
Council at the earliest opportunity so that a decision can be taken as to whether to 
contribute further funding to the scheme. 

 Given the amount of the fund currently out on loan and the performance of the 
scheme, it would not be logical to decrease the amount of funding.  
 

Potential amendments to the criteria  

Enterprise Answers have requested to change the minimum loan amount from 
£10,000 to £25,001 in respect of Sole Traders and Partnerships. 

Across their portfolio of products, Enterprise Answers now only provide unregulated 
lending solutions of £10,000+ for Limited Companies and £25,001+ for Sole Traders 
and Partnerships.  

This change should have no real impact on the EBSF as all of the loans that have 
previously been administered would still have proceeded with the above change in 
place. It is therefore recommended that this change be agreed and implemented.  

 

Page  22



 

 

Report No: G24/21 

Eden District Council 

Executive 

20 July 2021 

Unit 1, Gillan Way, Penrith – Relaxation of Covenants 

Portfolio: Resources Portfolio 

Report from: Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services 

Wards: Penrith West 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To consider the relaxation or release of a restrictive covenant upon a business 
premises at Unit 1, Gillan Way, Penrith. 

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that the restrictive covenant is relaxed to permit the use of 
the premises as an Ophthalmic Clinic (formerly Use Class D1, now Use Class 
E(e)). 

3 Report Details 

Explanatory Section - Use Classes 

3.1 On 1 September 2020, The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 came into force. These Regulations 
implemented changes to the Use Classes. 

3.2 For ease, together with consistency with the covenant wording, the previous 
Use Classes have been used within the body of this Report, accompanied by 
the ‘new’ Use Classes in brackets. 

3.3 Appendix 2 contains both the previous and new Use Classes of the occupied 
premises on the business park, together with including the sought Use Class of 
Unit 1 for reference purposes. 

The Request 

3.4 The Council previously owned land off Haweswater Road known as Land at 
Penrith 40 Business Park. One parcel of the site was transferred on 16 January 
2008. Part of this parcel is now known as Unit 1, Gillan Way, Penrith and is 
shown edged red of the plan at Appendix 1.  

3.5 At the time of transfer in 2008, a restrictive covenant was imposed for the 
benefit of the land retained by the Council stating that the owner: 

 “Shall not use the Property other than for uses permitted under Class B1 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as may from time to 
time be extended by statute)” 

 

Page  23

Agenda Item 8



 

 

3.6 Class B1 (now Use Class E(g)(i – iii)), comprises of: 

a) Offices other than use within Use Class A2 (now Use Class E(c)(i)); 

b) Research and development of products or processes; 

c) For any light industrial process (which can be carried out in any residential 
areas without causing detriment to the amenity of the area). 

3.7 The majority of the rest of the land comprised in the title of the ‘retained’ land 
has been sold. The Council now only owns two small parcels of land within the 
original site, as shown coloured blue of the said plan. 

3.8 The Council has received a request to relax the restrictive covenant for the 
benefit of a new subtenant of Unit 1, Gillan Way. 

3.9 The current leasehold owner has granted a 5 year sublease to the new 
subtenant who wishes to use the property to operate an Ophthalmic Clinic 
under Use Class D1 (now E(e)).  

3.10 Planning Permission for the relevant change of use has not yet been applied 
for however the new subtenant is aware of the need to apply for a change of 
use. 

3.11 In considering any relaxation or removal, the restrictive covenant was imposed 
for the benefit of the retained land. As such, the question to consider is, will the 
retained land be adversely affected by relaxation or removal of the covenant? 
The courts will only permit enforcement for a breach of covenant if such an 
adverse effect was present or would be likely to occur. 

3.12 It is envisaged that little or no adverse effect will be suffered by the Council’s 
retained land. 

3.13 Appendix 2 attached identifies the businesses in occupation at the business 
park. This schedule has been created based upon local knowledge rather than 
an in-depth survey. Of 14 businesses in current occupation, five appear to be 
using the properties primarily within the previous Use Class B1. The nature of 
the current request is not inconsistent with a number of the existing uses. In 
particular, Ghyllmount (a dental practice) is of the same Use Class sought by 
the new subtenant being D1 (now Use Class E(e)). Veterinary Vision (whilst 
operating under the Sui Generis Use Class) is a veterinary ophthalmic clinic 
having previously obtained a relaxation from the Executive Committee in 2016. 

Ownership Clarification  

3.14 Freehold ownership grants “title absolute” to the owner, meaning they own the 
building and land outright, in perpetuity. In contrast, leasehold ownership 
means that a lease has been granted allowing for use of the property for a 
specified number of years. 

3.15 In this case, the freehold owner of the land granted a long-term lease to the 
current leaseholder. The leaseholder has granted a short-term sublease to the 
new subtenant. 

 

  

 

Page  24



 

 

 

3.16 The applicable covenant is contained within the transfer of the freehold title from 
the Council. Whilst the request received is for the benefit of the new subtenant, 
any relaxation or removal of the covenant would require a relevant deed to be 
entered into between the Council and the freehold owner of the title. The 
freehold owner has confirmed their agreement to any such relaxation or 
release. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable and Healthy, Safe and Secure priorities. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 The required consultation has been undertaken in respect of this report. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The Council can impose and enforce the restrictions on the use of the land 
which arises from the land transfers. In effect, the Council can prevent any use 
of land that breaches the restrictions and seek either an injunction or damages 
for the breach. However, the land was acquired and developed for economic 
development purposes and the principal intentions of the Council would be to 
secure the appropriate development of the land and the Business Park. 
 

It is possible for the Council to release a restrictive covenant formally by 
deed. The release could specify a limited approval or be general, although it is 
considered that should a release be made it should be specific and limited. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising out of the proposal. 

  

Page  25



 

 

 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no adverse implications arising from this 
report under this heading. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

There are no adverse implications arising from this 
report under this heading. The release of the 
covenant will have a positive impact.  

Crime and Disorder There are no adverse implications arising from this 
report under this heading. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no adverse implications arising from this 
report under this heading. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Inappropriate 
development and/or 
use of the business 
park. 

Reduction in general 
desirability and security 
of economic 
development 

a) Appropriate 
consideration of 
the relaxation / 
release of 
restrictions; 

b) Specific and 
limited 
relaxation/release 
of restrictions. 

Reputational There is a potential for 
misconceptions of 
inconsistency between 
this decision and 
previous decisions 
relating to the 
relaxation of covenants 
on neighbouring land. 

Clear reasons should 
be recorded if the 
request is refused. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 Consideration has been given to removing the restrictive covenant however, in 
line with the Risk Management section above, this option was rejected in favour 
of a specific and limited relaxation in order to protect the development and/or 
use of the business park. 

  

Page  26



8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The reasons for the recommendation are that: 

a) it would appear to have little or no adverse impact on such retained land
that we still own; and;

b) is a use not inconsistent with other uses in the vicinity, including one
property utilising the same Use Class; and

c) a previous and similar request was approved by Executive in 2016, enabling
a neighbouring property to be used as a veterinary ophthalmic clinic (Class
Use Sui Generis, unchanged in the Regulations), accompanied by planning
approval from the Council.

Background Papers: 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Location Plan 

Appendix 2 – Property Use on Gillan Way, Penrith 

Contact Officer:  Lisa Tremble, Assistant Director Legal and 
Democratic Services 

Page  27



Unit 1, Gillan Way

 Scale: 1:1000

Printed on: 2021-06-22 16:37:04 by sophie.allinson@EDEN

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Eden District Council Licence No: 100023754

Appendix 1

Page  28



Appendix 2 

Businesses on Gillan Way, Penrith 

Business Nature of 
Business 

Class Use 
(former) 

Class Use (new) 

NFU Mutual Insurance 
Services 

A2 E(c)(ii) 

David Allen Accountants A2 E(c)(ii) 

Ghyllmount Dental Practice D1 E(e) 

A Chance for Life Complex Case 
Management and 
Rehabilitation 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Burnetts Solicitors Practice A2 E(c)(ii) 

Inspira Social enterprise 
providing 
community and 
youth services 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Cumbrian Homes Property 
Developer 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Kiddlywinks Day 
Nursery 

Day Nursery D1 E(f) 

Veterinary Vision Veterinary Practice Sui Generis Sui Generis 

Brewin Dolphin Stockbroker A2 E(c)(ii) 

Gaynham King & 
Mellor 

Solicitors Practice A2 E(c)(ii) 

Saint & Co Accountants A2 E(c)(ii) 

Atlantic Geomatics Surveying 
Consultancy 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Handlesbanken B1 E(g)(i) 

Unit 1, Gillan Way Ophthalmic Clinic D1 E(e) 

Page  29



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Unit 1, Gillan Way 

  Scale: 1:1000

Printed on: 2021-06-22 16:37:04 by sophie.allinson@EDEN

 
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Eden District Council Licence No: 100023754

Page  31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 2 

Businesses on Gillan Way, Penrith 

 

Business Nature of 
Business 

Class Use 
(former) 

Class Use (new) 

NFU Mutual Insurance 
Services 

A2 E(c)(ii) 

David Allen Accountants A2 E(c)(ii) 

Ghyllmount Dental Practice D1 E(e) 

A Chance for Life Complex Case 
Management and 
Rehabilitation 

B1 
 

E(g)(i) 

Burnetts Solicitors Practice A2 E(c)(ii) 

Inspira Social enterprise 
providing 
community and 
youth services 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Cumbrian Homes Property 
Developer 

B1 E(g)(i) 

Kiddlywinks Day 
Nursery 

Day Nursery D1 E(f) 

Veterinary Vision Veterinary Practice Sui Generis Sui Generis 

Brewin Dolphin Stockbroker A2 E(c)(ii) 

Gaynham King & 
Mellor 

Solicitors Practice A2 E(c)(ii) 

Saint & Co Accountants A2 E(c)(ii) 

Atlantic Geomatics Surveying 
Consultancy 

B1  E(g)(i) 

Handlesbanken  B1 E(g)(i) 

Unit 1, Gillan Way Ophthalmic Clinic D1 E(e) 

 

Page  33



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: F27/21 

Eden District Council 

Executive 
20 July 2021 

Covid-19 Update Report 

Portfolio: Leader 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

1.1.1 Provide a summary of achievements of the Officers within Eden DC in dealing with the 
Covid 19 pandemic over the past year.   

2 Recommendations 

It is recommended that the progress and achievements be noted. 

3 Report 

3.1 This report looks back over the past year on how the Council and in particular its 
Officers dealt with the pandemic and the changes to the services we offer.  All of us 
have been effected, whether it is working from home; home schooling; being in 
isolation, or losing someone close. 

3.2 This report is not a performance report – those issues are picked up in the regular 
quarterly performance reviews which are reported to Overview and Scrutiny, and the 
Executive. 

4. Service Areas 

4.1 On the 16 March 2020 the Prime Minster announced homeworking.  IT rolled out 
laptops to all staff and Members to enable remote working to ensure Council business 
continued once the doors to Mansion House and Town Hall closed. Microsoft Teams 
was also utilised so virtual meetings could take place. 

4.2 The following highlights the additional activities undertaken by Officers in addition to 
the day to day service provision, and delivery of our Corporate Policy objectives. 

4.3 IT 

 Upgraded the remote connectivity capacity in time for the first lockdown, to enable 
the transition to homeworking for 100% of staff. Wi-Fi hot spots were also issued 
to staff who have very poor internet connections in rural locations. 

 Technology permitted all telephone calls to continue, with no change including the 
contact centre where additional calls were being answered and processed with 
staff working from home. The Telephone Call Management Solution was modified 
to enhance capability for Council Tax and Business Rate queries. 

 Launch of My Account along with around 70 Digital Transactions for customers to 
self-serve and also be used by Customer Services staff for customers who phone 
in to the council. 

Page  35

Agenda Item 9



 Implementation of various Business Grant application forms to facilitate the 
processing and payment of much needed grants to businesses. 

 Implementation of the Revenues and Benefits Digital Portal and integration with 
My Account where customers can access Council Tax, Business Rates, Benefits 
and Landlord information and Services 

 Whilst developing the integration with My Account, the entire Revenues and 
Benefits system was rebuilt and required a major upgrade to the database 
subsystem. This was achieved for both Eden and South Lakeland and ahead of 
most other councils in the Country who required the deadline to be extended from 
December 2020 to May 2021 

 Implementation of Microsoft Teams for Virtual Meetings and to underpin the 
operation of Virtual Council meetings and provided the IT support to the Council 
Meetings 

 Continued with various Business as Usual projects to underpin the continued 
operation of ICT across the council: 

o Upgrade to Laptops to ensure Windows 10 is secure 

o Upgrade to Remote Desktop Services to help people work from home on slow 
Broadband connections 

o Continued work to improve the data used in Planning, Building Control and 
Land Charges.  To support the implementation of a new system 

o Work to change the way we work to reduce the demand on ICT support 

o Upgraded systems within the council to maintain security and operation such 
as Elections, Revenues and Benefits. 

o ICT Security Breaches have rocketed throughout the Pandemic, we’ve 
maintained ICT Network Security by ensuring all necessary security patches 
are implemented as required and as announced, most recent example is the 
issues with Exchange which affected 1000s of organisations worldwide 

o Led on the Cumbria Wide procurement of a new Cumbria Choice Based 
Letting ICT Solution (The Housing Register). South Lakeland are the lead 
authority for the partnership hence why ICT led on the procurement. This was 
in close liaison with the Cumbria Choice Based Letting Board made up of 13 
partner organisations. The system is being implemented now and shared ICT 
resources are assisting with this and are being funded by the partnership 

 Survived numerous ICT issues during the past 12 months which have meant ICT 
staff working additional hours, over weekends and in some cases through the 
night 

 Shared ICT has been working to support 2 Councils not just one. During the 
pandemic, this has put a great deal of additional strain on an already busy service 
but team members have worked exceptionally hard to maintain services for all 

 For context, the ICT Department; 

o Support 606 users across Eden and South Lakeland District Councils 

o Support two fully operating data centres (one in each Council). Both host 85 
virtual servers making 170 virtual servers in total 

o Support all of the different systems operating across both councils (and lead 
on the development of many), such as; 

Page  36



 EsbAgile Enterprise Digital Platform 

 Finance and Payroll 

 Elections and Democratic Services 

 Revenues and Benefits 

 Planning 

 Building Control 

 Land Charges 

 Local Land and Property Gazetteer and Enterprise Geographical System 
(GIS) 

 Telephone System 

 Information at work (Document Management) 

 Income Management (Cash Receipting) 

 Homelessness 

 Email 

 Plus many other smaller systems 

4.4 Customer Services 

 For the first 5 working days after lockdown the team took 1,741 calls, compared to 
762 for the same time the previous year. 

 Call statistics (service level and number of abandoned calls) have improved by 
9%. 

 The team are carrying out more supportive administrative duties for other 
colleagues working from home such as printing and post 

 Supporting IT with the roll out of My Account, testing new objectives prior to going 
live 

 Supporting Council Tax with calls diverting to 817817 and dealing with high 
volumes of grant enquiries. 

4.5 Communications Team  

 Attendance on a number of new groups and conference calls, such as The 
Community Resilience Group, Strategic Media Advisory Cell (this group 
coordinates messages from Cumbria’s multi-agency public communication bodies, 
such as Police, NHS etc.), Business Continuity Group and a number of additional 
Covid-19 related meetings 

 The creation of specific Covid-19 related content for the Herald newspaper, local 
radio stations. This is in addition to the preparation of numerous Social Media and 
Eden District Council website communications to help inform internal staff, local 
businesses and Eden residents. This included all planning, design collaboration, 
proofing and distribution of the media content 

 Dealing with Covid-19 media enquiries 

 Preparation of staff and member briefings 

Page  37



4.6 Human Resources  

 Introduced virtual interviews and staff inductions that enabled several 
appointments of new members of staff during the Pandemic. The virtual interviews 
and inductions resulted in no additional cost to the Council 

 Additional health and wellbeing support for staff was made available via a new 
online Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) 

 The Council have been able to continue to develop its staffing team despite Covid-
19, making an important contribution to both the Council and the district overall 

4.7  Tourism 

 Held a successful virtual Eden Tourism summit with excellent levels of attendance 
and engagement despite the ongoing pandemic. 

 Provided a wide range of guidance to help Eden’s Tourism industry. 

 Continued to actively support the tourism elements of the Fellfoot Forward and 
Westmorland Dales Landscape Partnership Schemes. 

 Assisted in delivery of pre-start activity for the tourism sector when the country 
came out of various lockdowns which included the promotion of the Ring of 
Confidence scheme for Eden businesses. 

 Continued to run the Eden Tourism Network to provide help, advice and support to 
the private sector tourism sector through incredibly difficult times.   

 Ensured the TIC and Museum service opened safely when it could and moved 
provision effectively online and through the telephone when it has had to close 

4.8 Economic Development 

 Initially chaired and help establish the Town Centre Reopening Groups in each of 
the town centres. 

 Managed to keep the apprenticeship scheme going to support a particularly hard 
hit demographic of the pandemic. 

 Developing a project with the DWP to bring about further employment support for 
young people. 

 Continued to manage and support the successful Eden Business Support Fund.  

 The development of a range of Policies for undertaking discretionary Covid grants 
was also carried out. This work often led the process for a range of other District 
Councils in Cumbria. 

 Ensured businesses were able to access support and advice (relating to both the 
pandemic and Brexit issues) by rolling out training delivered by Red Kite and 
ensuring close communication with a vast number of Eden businesses. 

 Supported Eden Arts practically and with finance to put in place a Covid Secure 
Winter Droving Event in October 2020. 

 Arranged for bench marking to take place for each of the Town Centres. 

 Continued to support and lead Appleby Heritage Action Zone. 

 The policy approach for the Eden Community Covid Hardship Fund was 
established in partnership with the Executive. 

 Contributed to the County Council’s County Recovery Strategy. 

Page  38



4.9 Arts & Culture 

 Create to Connect launched on the 18th May. The project focused on being 
involved with all things creative to help people cope with the Covid19 pandemic. 

 In conjunction with EDC’s Economic Development Team, supported Eden Arts 
practically and with finance to put in place a Covid Secure Winter Droving Event in 
October 2020. 

 Supported the development of the Highlighting Eden Arts Programme and 
successfully recruited a new provider We Are Team for a 3 year arts programme. 

4.10 Development Management 

 Moved the entire planning system so it could be utilised remotely 

 Ensured the Planning Service continued to run smoothly and provide vital support 
for the local economy and maintained high levels of service. 

4.11 Revenues and Benefits 

 The Council’s Revenues and Benefits and Economic Development Teams 
(supported by officers from across all departments) have successfully processed 
and administered 13,303 Covid Support Grants, totalling £51,982,620.80 (up to 
w/e 27 June 2021). A full breakdown of the Covid-19 Grants is shown in the 
following table; 

Covid-19 Grants Administered (Cumulative to w/e 27 June 2021) 

Grant 
Total number 
administered 

to date  

Total value paid 
to date  

Small Business Grant (SBG) Scheme- closed 30 
September 2020 

1,753 £17,530,000.00 

Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant (RHLG) Scheme- 
closed 30 September 2020 

480 £7,260,000.00 

Local Discretionary Grant Scheme - closed 30 
September 2020 

183 £1,240,500.00 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed i.e. 
Businesses required to close) 5 November 2020- 2 
December 2020 

1,538 £2,196,246.00 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed i.e. 
Businesses required to close) Post 2 December 2020* 

29 £23,006.00 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open i.e. Businesses 
able to remain open) 

1,518 £1,423,106.00 

Additional Restrictions Grant 858 £1,538,123.00 

Christmas Support Payment 68 £68,000.00 

Local Restrictions Support Grant Sectors 4 £2,357.14 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed - Addendum 
Tier 4) 

1,495 £381,045.56 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed- Addendum 
Post 5th Jan 2021) 

3,059 £6,706,321.00 

Page  39



 

Grant 
Total number 
administered 

to date  

Total value paid 
to date  

Closed Businesses Lockdown Payment 1,537 £6,580,000.00 

Restart Grant: Strand One (Non- essential retail) 147 £412,711.00 

Restart Grant: Strand Two (Hospitality, Leisure, 
Accommodation, Gym & Sports and Personal Care) 

924 £8,092,000.00 

Total (Sum of the Above) 

Total number of Grants Administered to date: 12,313 £51,770,262.99 

Local Council Tax Reduction Hardship Grant (Grants issued fiscal year 2020/2021) 

Local Council Tax Reduction Hardship Grant 990 £212,357.82 

Grand Total: 13,303 £51,982,620.80 

(Source: EDC Revenue & Benefits) 

 High levels of performance in determining applications for Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax reduction have been maintained even though the working age 
caseload for Council Tax Reduction increased from 1,468 cases before the 
pandemic to 1,782 cases currently. 

 Test and Trace Support Payments have been successfully introduced and almost 
400 applications have been assessed. 

 On-line access to Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Benefit and paperless 
billing has been successfully introduced. 

 Staff have shown exceptional commitment working additional hours throughout the 
pandemic to ensure services are maintained 

4.12 Finance 

 Despite being an office which is heavily paper-based, Accountancy and Creditors 
services have successfully transitioned to a near paperless service, practically 
overnight 

 All Payroll and Creditors runs have continued with no interruption to service 

 Provided assistance to ensure all Covid Grant payment runs have been made 
without delay, with staff providing support into the late evening as and when 
required 

4.13 Community Services 

 EDC’s Community Services section has and continues to have a direct major role 
(both local and Countywide) in Covid-19 response. The use of existing staff and 
their local knowledge and relationships with businesses has been essential and 
enabled Officers to assist heavily with Test Track and Trace.  

 By the Service area working flexibly, Officers learning new systems/processes, the 
adaption of working practices and Team members working additional periods 
outside of normal working hours, a highly effective public health response has been 
possible whilst maintaining core services. 

Page  40



 Key items to note are; 

o In conjunction with Cumbria County Council and the other Cumbrian Local 
Authorities, Eden’s Track and Trace Team are currently in the process of being 
nominated for an award to recognise the effective joint working between 
organisations during the pandemic 

o Staff are (and have been) working more hours than contracted, including 
weekends and evenings to support contact tracing and enforcement work 

o Attendance at a large number of newly created meetings to support Covid work 

o Familiarisation with government legislation and Covid guidance in order to 
respond to queries from members of the public 

o Successful bids made to the Green Homes Grant fund 

o Effective co-working relationship with Housing Options Service. This has been 
essential in responding successfully to increased homeless presentations, 
increase in the requirement for temporary accommodation and increased 
evictions due to rent arrears as a result of the pandemic 

4.14  Planning Policy 

 Continued support for Communities developing their own Neighbourhood Plans. 

 The appointment of Consultants to assist the development of the Strategic 
Housing Economic Needs Assessment (SHENA). 

 Development of a response to Central Government’s White Paper on Planning for 
the Future and reworked an appropriate approach to undertaking a partial review 
of the Local Plan. This is mindful of the implications of the White Paper and the 
potential of Local Government Reorganisation to ensure the Council does not 
waste resources and ensures the needs of communities are met. 

 Leading negotiations on a working agreement with the County Council and 
Highways England over the dualling of parts of the A66 which is a nationally 
significant infrastructure project. 

5 Policy Framework 

5.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, Safe and Secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

5.2 This report meets all of the above priorities. 

6 Consultation 

6.1 Not required. 

7 Implications 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

7.1.2 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  

Page  41



7.2 Legal 

7.2.1 The provision of functions set out in this report shall be provided in accordance with 
relevant legal requirements including those that impact on equality and diversity and 
taking account of the legal duties that the Council has towards staff. 

7.3 Human Resources 

7.3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

7.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity None arising from this report 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The Council has an obligation to follow Covid 19 
legislation and associated guidance, which has a 
positive impact on the consideration of and delivery 
of positive outcomes in terms of Health, Social, 
Environmental and Economic Impact. 

Crime and Disorder None arising from this report 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

None arising from this report 

7.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Risks to public, finance 
or reputation through 
poor monitoring of 
Council Performance. 

Adverse impacts on the 
public, the Council’s 
finances or reputation. 

The new performance 
management framework 
now links risk 
management with priority 
actions, programmes and 
measures. 

8 Other Options Considered 

8.1 The only other option is not to report on positive work carried by council staff. 

9 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

9.1 To advise Members of positive work carried by council staff. 

 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: Appendix A- Covid Grants- Explanatory Notes 

Contact Officer: Amanda Yellowley, Assistant Director - Customers & Performance 

Page  42



Appendix A- COVID-19 Update Report 

1 
 

Covid-19 Grants- Explanatory Notes 

Grant Notes 

Small Business Grant (SBG) 
Scheme- closed 30 September 
2020 

One off payment for businesses receiving Small 
Business Rate Relief operating at 11 March 2020. 

Retail, Hospitality and Leisure 
Grant (RHLG) Scheme- closed 
30 September 2020 

One off payment for businesses in these sectors 
qualifying for Expanded Retail Discount, with RV under 
£51k and operating at 11 March 2020. 

Local Discretionary Grant 
Scheme - closed 30 September 
2020 

For small and micro businesses with fixed property 
costs not eligible for SBG or RHLG 

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
(Closed i.e. Businesses required 
to close) 5 November 2020- 2 
December 2020 

For businesses required to close between 5 November 
2020- 2  December 2020 

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
(Closed i.e. Businesses required 
to close) Post 2 December 
2020* 

Ongoing support for businesses required to close post 
2 December 2020 under Tier 2 

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
(Open i.e. Businesses able to 
remain open) 

Provides financial support to businesses linked to 
hospitality, hotel, B&B and leisure sectors that have 
remained open, but have been severely affected by the 
tiered local restrictions from 14 October 2020- 4 
November 2020 and 2 December 2020 onwards (stops 
in lockdown as LRSG Closed applies) 

Additional Restrictions Grant 

Businesses who do not qualify for the Local 
Restrictions Support Grants, such as Supply Chain 
Businesses severely impacted because they wholly or 
exclusively supply businesses in hospitality 
accommodation 

Christmas Support Payment 

For ‘wet-led’ pubs. Supports pubs that predominantly 
serve alcohol rather than provide food and have been 
severely affected over the festive period due to 
temporary local restrictions 

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
Sectors 

Businesses that have been required to close nationally 
since 23rd March 2020 in all 314 business rate billing 
local authorities 

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
(Closed - Addendum Tier 4) 

Businesses that are required to close under Tier 4 
restrictions from 31 December 2020 to 4 January 2021  

Local Restrictions Support Grant 
(Closed- Addendum Post 5th 
Jan 2021) 

Businesses that are required to close due to national 
lockdown which came into effect on 5th January 2021 
 

Closed Businesses Lockdown 
Payment 

Businesses which have been supported with a one-off 
payment through the closed Business Lockdown 
Payment Scheme 

Local Council Tax Reduction 
Hardship Grant 

Council Tax bill reduced by up to a further £300 for 
working age people receiving Council Tax Reduction. 

Restart Grants Strand 1 
Grants of up to £6,000 for non-essential retail 
businesses to help them reopen safely.   

Restart Grants Strand 2 
Grants of up to £18,000 for hospitality, 
accommodation, leisure, personal care and gym 
business premises to help them reopen safely 

Page  43



Appendix A- COVID-19 Update Report 

2 
 

 

Page  44


	Agenda
	6 Corporate Strategic Priorities 2021/22
	NEW Strategic Priorities 21 22 FINAL

	7 Eden Business Support Fund  - 6 Year Review
	8 Unit 1, Gillan Way, Penrith - Relaxation of Covenants
	FINAL Exec Report - Unit 1, Gillan Way - Relaxation of Covenant
	Unit 1, Gillan Way - Appendix 1, Plan
	Unit 1, Gillan Way - Appendix 2, Business on Gillan Way
	Unit 1, Gillan Way - Appendix 1, Plan
	Unit 1, Gillan Way - Appendix 2, Business on Gillan Way

	9 Covid Update Report
	Appendix A (updated) Covid


